

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB INC





Contents

Minutes of 2022 AGM President's Report Chairman's Report **JCC Honours Awards Team Reports Premier Men Premier Women Premier Reserves** $3^{rd} X1$ **Panthers** Northern X1 **Blue Caps** Girls Hardball – Ruru Girls Hardball – Kereru **Girls Hardball - Tuis** Prize Winners 2022-2023 Season **Club Sponsors and Supporters** Audited Accounts for 2022-2023 Season

Team Statistics and Club Records

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given of the Annual General Meeting to be held at Waiora, Alex Moore Park, Bannister Ave, Johnsonville at 7.30 pm on Tuesday 29 August 2023.

Agenda

Confirm minutes of the 2022 Annual General Meeting (these minutes immediately follow this agenda)

Presentation of Annual Report

Presentation of Financial Statements

Election of officers including:

- Management Committee
- Club selectors
- Honorary auditor

Subscriptions for 2023-2024 season

General business

Minutes of 2022 AGM

Johnsonville Cricket Club Annual General Meeting

Date: 31 August 2022 **Time**: 7:30 - 8:30pm **Venue**: Waiora

Attendees:

Alan Isaac (Club President) (Chair)

Rick Mudgway (Club Captain)

Zac Ringrose (Secretariat)

Wendy Welsh (Treasurer)

Connor Lusty

Earle Cooper

Scott Mudgway

Luke Woodcock

Dallas Mildenhall

George Verry Matthew Wills (Cricket Wellington Rep)

Ravi Dharmawardane Hemant Verma

Apologies:

Nigel Blair (Senior Vice President)Annissa GreenleesRakitha WeerasundaraLeigh WoodcockJoanne HoldawayMichael McCully

Darren Lynch

	ITEM	Lead	ACTION
1.	Presidents Welcome Alan Isaac welcomes everyone, especially the life members. Alan notes the apologies.	Club President	
2.	 Minutes The Group approved the Minutes of the 9th of September 2021 AGM 	Club President	
3.	 Annual Report Alan speaks to his President's Report Rick Mudgway speaks to his Chairman's Report Matt McEwan speaks to his Premier Men's Report Connor Lusty Speaks to the Premier Reserve Report 	Club President	
4.	 Wendy Welsh Speaks to the Financial Performance Wendy thanks the sponsors Alan Isaac noted the jump in insurance payment This is due to the insurance originally not covering the contents of the shed Alan moves to approve the financials, George seconds it 	Wendy Welsh	

	ITEM		Lead	ACTION
	Appoin	Alan moves to adopt the annual report, George Seconds it	Club	
5.	•	Zachary Ringrose Calls for Nominations for Club President - Scott nominates Alan Isaac, George seconds Alan Calls for Nominations for Senior Vice President - Alan nominates Nigel Blair, Rick Seconds Alan Calls for Nominations for Secretary - Wendy nominates Zachary Ringrose, Luke Woodcock seconds Alan Calls for Nominations for treasurer - Alan Nominates Wendy Welsh, Rick seconds Alan Calls for Nominations for Club Captain - Alan nominates Rick Mudgway, Scott seconds Alan Calls for Nominations for Junior Convenor - Appointment to be confirmed Selection Committee - Captains of the first 3 men's teams, coach and Rick Mudgway Management Committee Nominations (Rick Nominates) - Janakan Karunaharan - Hemant Verma - Connor Lusty - Ravi Dharmawardane - Michael McCully - Annissa Greenlees - Matt McEwan Auditor appointment to be confirmed	President	
6.	Subscri Rick Mu	ptions dgway moves: Reduction from \$290 to \$250 for premier men's and premier reserve Increase 3rdXI from \$210 to \$250 All other Senior subscriptions remain the same Junior subs are increased from \$100 to \$115 for year 2 to 7	Club Captain	
	•	All other Junior subscriptions remain the same		

	ITEM	Lead	ACTION
	Group approves the changes		
7.	General Business	All	
	Wellington cricket update from Matthew Wills		
	 Matt notes the switch from CricHQ to PlayHQ 		
	- Matt points out there are some concerns with PlayHQ		
	app and they are working with the company to sort them		
	Cricket Wellington are back working in schools, with		
	good uptake from Johnsonville schools		
	Smash Play cricket has been brought in to replace Milo Cricket		
	 Matt Wilson is the new competitions manager taking over Paul Young 		
	Life Membership nomination		
	 Alan Isaac moves that Rick Mudgway be made a Life Member of the Johnsonville Cricket club, noting his tireless commitment to the club over the last 30+ years Luke Woodcock Seconds Rick thanks the group and notes the highlights over his time. 		
	Alan Isaac raps up the 2022 AGM		

President's Report

The 2022/2023 season was the club's 137th season. We now have full access to all of the facilities of Waiora (our new shared clubrooms), and what a difference it has made to the running of the club.

Unfortunately, the first half of the season was interrupted by poor weather, however the club again fielded eight teams, (Six men's and two women's). In addition, there were 20 junior teams plus the super star academy programme for youngsters.

The Premier Men's team retained their position in the Premier competitions for next season coming 3rd in the Ewen Chatfield one day competition and 4th overall in the Pearce Cup

Once again one of the features of the side was the all-round contribution from a solid core of players. Notably again a number of the players played their junior cricket for the club. Sadly, however two stalwarts David Hudson and Rakitha Weerasundara have left for Australia and will be missing for the new season.

The leading run scorer for the men's Premier team was Gareth Severin, who won the Bryan Malin Trophy and Maximus Petrie was the leading wicket taker winning the Robert Turner Trophy.

After outstanding performances in Club and Wellington A teams over recent seasons, Gareth Severin made his first class debut for the Firebirds late in the season and in a match against Northern Districts scored a tremendous 196. Gareth was awarded the John Butt Memorial Trophy, as the JCC Club Cricketer of the year and the Nigel Blair Trophy as the Premier Men's Player of the Year. Devan Vishvaka, Nathan Smith, and Nick Kelly were also selected in the Firebirds teams. The latter two only being available to play on odd occasions for the club.







Devan Vishvaka

The Reserve side once again ably managed by Clive Kirby performed well, finishing sixth overall. The winner of the Dennis Duggan Cup for player of the year was Callan Holgate.

The Premier Women's side which combined with Wellington Collegians came runners up in the one day competition and 3rd in the T20 competition. The rising star Dhriti Girish not only won the batting and bowling trophies but also the Molly Bleakley Cup, for the most valuable player of the

year. She also won the Luke Woodcock Trophy for the most outstanding player in the club under 20 years of age.

Well done to Maximus Petrie, for being selected in a Wellington City side and the Wellington Māori side. Congratulations to Dhriti Girish, Anvi Verma, Hannah Leckie, Zara Mellsop, Aesha Sukhu, Aaryana Ganesh, Gracie McIver, Emma McKenzie, Senali Vasanthathilake for being selected in their respective age group representative sides. Also, to current and former Women players who won representative honours, Leigh Kasperek, Jess McFadyen, and Maneka Singh. Leigh being controversially left out of the White Ferns World Cup side again but being recalled for the winter tour to Sri Lanka.

Congratulations to all of the other trophy winners who are recorded elsewhere in this report.

Thanks again to Rick Mudgway and Wendy Welsh and the Committee for their contributions throughout the year. Wendy's efforts were recognized with her being awarded the Allan Brider Trophy. The club's financial position remains very sound as we move into a new era as a member of the AMPSCI multi club facility.

Thanks also to Cheryl Styles for her scoring services and to Colin and Leanne Severin for their contributions managing the Premier side.

To all of the other committee members, and people who contributed during the season thanks as well. Particularly those helping with the Junior section which is such an important part of the club's activities.

As we approach the new season we are nicely positioned as one of the strongest clubs in the Wellington region with arguably the best facilities. Here's to another successful season.

Alan Isaac President

Chairman's Report

We entered the start of the 2022-2023 season full of hope and joy-New Zealand had relaxed Covid 19 restrictions, and as best as we could we were about to return to normal life as we had previously known it.

That was before a couple of bombshells affected the game we love- weather disruptions the likes of what we had not encountered previously; the premature release by NZ Cricket of an untested and untried scoring, registration and database management system causing mayhem and frustration to our volunteer community, and various other matters that did make life difficult for our players, parents, administrators and the like.

Before I leave the subject of NZ Cricket's forced roll out to us of this new scoring and database management system called PlayHQ I can't but comment on the facts that surround this matter- that is NZ Cricket dumped a NZ owned and developed scoring and management application that had been rescued out of receivership by a local Wellington businessman and that had saved NZ Cricket from ignominy only for that said organisation to then go behind this company CricHQ's back and develop from scratch a replication of what CricHQ offered and provided. Although not totally brilliant it was well known and trusted by the wider cricket community. We are disappointed and surprised that the hierarchy and the Board of NZ Cricket did not take more affirmative actions to investigate what went on behind the scenes for this to occur.

Anyway enough of the negatives!

SENIOR CLUB SECTION

In his President's report Alan Isaac has commented on our teams and their placings in the respective senior grades in which we participated as well as our players who were chosen for Wellington representative honours. I reiterate our congratulations to all of those players. Whilst there was no silverware this season for any of our teams we were encouraged by the performances of a new team the Blue Caps who participated in the Division 3 Wellington T20 grade as well as the showings by all three of our Girls Hardball teams.

It should also be noted that our Premier Men's team are one of only four club teams that compete at the highest club level available in Wellington alongside Taita, Hutt Districts and Eastern Suburbs. This is something that we should not take for granted as we have all worked very hard to get Johnsonville back up into the very top echelons of club cricket in Wellington as evidenced by our winning of the supreme club championship the Pearce Cup in the 2020-2021 season and the 2021-2022 season-not many clubs can go back to back in winning that trophy so well done to all of the players who played in the Premier team for retaining this elite status.

Player Availability

For a variety of reasons the season also threw up the most player availability issues that we as a club had ever encountered. At the season start we had close to 40 players registered and available for selection into one of our top three X1's and we were wondering how we could get all players cricket if everyone was available on all occasions. Little did we know that on many occasions trips to the T20 World Cup in Australia, stag parties and even weddings during the cricket season (holy hell!) and severe injuries to two of our most consistent players the Edgecombe brothers, would impact on our teams so much that coach Matt McEwan dicky knee and all, had to don the pads on several occasions. This was a worry for coach McEwan and no doubt has led to a few more grey hairs appearing on his scalp! Nevertheless we did get through and all teams that are contestably selected

(1st-3rd X1's) managed to retain their grade status and avoid being relegated from their grades. So again a well done to all players who helped recruit players and who went out of their way to be available.

Senior Women's Cricket

Sadly we were unable to field a standalone Premier 1 Division women's team as only five regular players from the previous season were available. To ensure that we provided cricket for these ladies, as well as retain a link to them, we partnered with the Collegians club to field a combined team in this grade. The team made the final of the 40 over competition and finished 3rd in the T20 component of the competition. Special thanks to all of those players, especially captain Annissa Greenlees who stuck with the ship, and we hope that we can once again return to fielding a standalone team in the next season.

Despite being warned a few years ago that there were not really enough senior women players playing the game to warrant a six team competition (it was previously 5) Cricket Wellington chose to ignore those suggestions and press onwards. I wish just sometimes that they would listen to the voices out at the coalface who know the lay of the land and not be ideologically blindsided to field the biggest and the so called best-a sad fact but very few if any Cricket Wellington personnel have ever been involved in club cricket administration which in itself tells the story.

There is tremendous growth happening at the grassroots level for female cricketers but 10 years of neglect by the powers that be in cricket will not be overturned in 5 minutes, and it will take time for these young players coming through to be ready and skilled enough to play elite Premier 1 women's cricket, as after all it is supposedly a senior women's competition.

Despite a somewhat pessimistic start to this report there were many positives and highlights that did come out of the season

- Gareth Severin being the leading run scorer in Premier 1 Men's club cricket which ultimately saw him rewarded with a number of games for the Firebirds. These games included an outstanding innings of 196 where his efforts almost saw Wellington score an unlikely win against Northern Districts. Gareth's efforts have subsequently been further recognised with him being awarded his first Firebirds contract.
- Scott Mudgway achieving the unique feat of playing 300 games for the Premier 1 Men's team as well as being the clubs leading run scorer in Premier cricket; having taken the most dismissals (now just 5 short of achieving 500 catches or stumpings) and taken the record number of dismissals in any one season. A picture attached shows Scott receiving a recognition from the club for his 300 games.
- Sadly we bade farewell in late January to a club stalwart David Hudson who has relocated to live in Melbourne. David finishes his career with the club having played 151 matches' taken 270 wickets at an average of 18.2 with best bowling of 6/23. David also took 5 plus wickets in an innings on 9 occasions. We shall miss Dave's metronomic line and length bowling and his role for many years as the spearhead of our bowling attack-all the best Dave in Melbourne. We hope that Dad Graeme will continue to be around the club as a supporter and as a drinking buddy for yours truly!
- We also bade farewell at the end of the season to Rakitha Weerasundara. Rakitha was a former junior player who came back to the club at the end of his secondary schooling. Raki and his wife were heading overseas on a belated honeymoon with the intention of eventually settling in Sydney. Raki was good enough to be a New Zealand Under 19 representative and also played over a number of seasons for Wellington A without quite cracking it into the Firebirds when many players of lesser quality have done so. Who will

forget Raki's captains knock of 199 not out to secure us a first inning lead of 192 in our Pearce Cup final against Taita and who would eventually lift the trophy for the first time so Raki will go down at the club as the first winning captain of the Pearce Cup winning team. Raki finishes with 174 games for the club; 5113 runs including 7 centuries (highest score of 199 no) and an average of 30.8. A more than useful off spinner Raki also finishes with 119 wickets at a very good average of 19.6 and best bowling of 5/26-good luck Raki on whatever the future holds for you and thank you for your outstanding contribution to our club.





Raki Huddo

- Past Players Day 11 February 2023 we introduced some new events to the function:
 - High Tea for partners and Mum's of Premier team players which was well supported. It was in recognition for their part in allowing their sons / partners to give up all day Saturdays to play the game they love. Thank you for your support.
 - 100 Games+ Award We also introduced a new initiative in presenting commemorative caps to male players who had played 100 or more games for the Senior/Premier Men's team. A great initiative well received by all in attendance either personally or by way of a family representative. We even had the famous Gareth Powell beaming in from where he now resides Bangkok.
 - Life Member Badges We also took the opportunity to present a Life Members badge to all of our current living Life Members and this too was extremely well received.
 - o It was great to see such a good turnout at Past Players Day and we thank those who travelled from as far away as Auckland (Ross Verry) and or whom zoomed in as regards Gareth. A challenge was laid down by Lisa Chafe for club president Alan Isaac to now go ahead and replicate a commemorative cap for female players who may also have played 100 games for the club-over to you Alan. Some pictures of the event are included in this report. Thank you to everyone who made the effort to come out and support this event and it was great to see so many old faces there. On a comical note when I returned later in the evening to collect my car, my wife was identified as an Uber driver by two gentlemen who were clearly worse for wear-great to see you enjoyed yoursleves Nigel and Alan!
- We negotiated a new major sponsor to join Russell Properties as major sponsors of the club-Kilbirnie Sport have come on board as a sponsor and we thank Scott, Mark, Darryl, Rowena and Johnathan for their continued and renewed support for our club. They would by far and

away be the best cricket goods suppliers in New Zealand and their support of our club in this generous sponsorship as well as in many other ways is truly outstanding. Subsequent to season end Russell Properties have confirmed that they will once again be the major and naming rights sponsor for the club but this will be the last season that they will do so. We thank Mike and team at Russell Properties for their support over a number of years now. Another challenge for the club administration to now find another sponsor.

• The number of females playing some form of cricket at our club ranging from the introductory Smash Play Academy programme for children in Years 0 and 1 at school who are 5 years old through to senior women players who range in age up to 30 years old increased to a total of 85 players which reportedly would make us the largest club in Wellington in terms of female players. This is a great effort and in many ways thanks to the efforts of our Women's and Girls Coordinator Michael McCully and his coterie of helpers who manage and coach the players-many thanks team. Our challenge is to now keep these ladies and girls in the game and continue to grow this base of players.

Running our club continues to pose major challenges in so many ways-people have less time to devote to volunteer activities; their enthusiasm and passion for their club is not as strong as what it was many years ago. People get old and tired after having done the same for many years now and that includes me. We need an injection of new blood to revitalise the club with new ideas and new ways of doing things to keep us relevant in these fast changing times. This is a challenge not only for the club but the game-to be relevant in 2023.

Nevertheless we are blessed with many people who contribute to the successful running of the club-from treasurer Wendy Welsh who also combines that task with numerous others that I thrust upon her; secretary Zac Ringrose, committee members Janakan Karunaharan, Connor Lusty, Michael McCully, Hemant Verma, Ravi Dharmawardene, Annissa Greenlees, Jo Holdaway, Matt McEwan and various other team representatives who attend committee meetings from time to time. Thank you for all of your contributions, they are very much appreciated.

Looking Forward

Matt McEwan advised during the season that due to work commitments he would be unavailable to continue in his role as coach of our top three X1's. This has given the club a chance to review where it is going with coaching and has made the decision to seek to employ a full time Director of Coaching and Development. We have identified a suitable applicant and are currently awaiting approval from Immigration NZ to offer the role to who we believe is an outstanding candidate. It is hoped that should everything go smoothly our new coach will be in place by 1 October 2023.

The candidate played 14 test matches for his country with a highest score of 120 and with a healthy average of 35.69. He was also a more than useful off spinner. He is currently the batting coach of his country's Men's A team and will shortly be off to England with his country's women's team where he will perform the role as batting coach. He will be contracted to the club for a minimum three year term and we expect to see outstanding results start to come through from his expertise. He will take charge of coaching all three of our top Men's teams as well as coaching our Premier Women's and Girls development teams. He will also be involved with the local colleges and be working with talented youngsters at the club. We hope to establish an Academy moving forward where we can keep track of and develop children who are moving through the secondary system because at the moment once they leave the club we effectively have little to do with them for 5 years-this way we can keep developing them and also building a base of players to return to play for the club.

This is a huge investment by the club and one we think that will reward us in the years to come. Further details will be advised when we have been able to lock our candidate in place.

For a number of years now we have been fortunate to have access, which we pay for, to an indoor training facility known as the Farnboro Centre located on the grounds of Onslow College. Sadly due to a number of factors the facility has been let go and vandalism and weather damage have restricted its ability to fulfil our needs. With the club now moving to employ a full time Director of Coaching we believe that the time is right for the club to begin investigations into establishing its own indoor all weather training facility on Alex Moore Park. What such a facility might cost and where it might be located are just pie in the sky thoughts at the moment, but to ensure our survival now and into the future we believe that both of these initiatives are the key to our continued success.

JUNIOR CLUB SECTION

The club experienced the largest growth in playing numbers for a number of years with the number of junior players increasing to in excess of 250 children. Sadly their season was one of extreme disappointment with many playing days lost to the vagaries of the weather. We hope that this disappointing run of weather was a one off and that this will not be replicated in the season to come.

We continue to be blessed with the support of our many parents who volunteer to coach, manage and score their children's games. We appreciate your support-thank you.

We also once again experienced excellent support from the local business community who sponsor our junior teams, thus keeping the coast of playing at an affordable level. Those sponsors are mentioned separately in this Annual Report and are too numerous to list here.

We are well versed with having a vibrant and hardworking committee who help run things from sorting teams; gear maintenance and replacement; coaching; prizegiving functions; Hawkes Bay coordination; team photos and a myriad of other tasks. The key to this is ensuring that we have a continuing pipeline of people coming through to replace those who drop off as their children move on to secondary schooling.

Junior Coaching

A recently published survey by NZ Cricket of respondees to a cricketing survey showed that an area of concern nationwide was expressed by about 3% of respondees as to the quality and level of coaching. Players and parents from our club (39 in total) also responded to this survey and our results were published alongside those from a nationwide point of view. The majority of the respondents from our club were in the junior category of player so one has to assume that the quality of coaching was a factor in these parents' responses which indicated that from our club 21% of respondents had some concerns around coaching. This is of interest to the club and was partly responsible for us making the decision to appoint a Coach Educator, Connor Lusty whose role it is to support and assist coaches of our junior teams. Connor has received excellent support from Christian Thurston from Cricket Wellington and his involvement with our teams has been widely supported as an additional resource by our band of coaches. This will continue to be a major focus into the seasons moving forward and Connor's involvement together with the appointment of our Director of Coaching can only help alleviate this situation. Our coaches are all police vetted; have completed modules covering the Welfare of Adults and Vulnerable Children and have all completed some form of theoretical and practical coaching courses to assist them develop their group of players. Again we remain ever thankful for the coaches we have as without their involvement the children would have no support to further grow their love of the game.

New Junior Playing Apparel

A highlight of the season was the equipping out of all players from school years 2-7 in a newly designed and logoed Johnsonville Cricket Club playing shirt. This playing shirt was enabled through the support of generous sponsorship from **Kilbirnie Sport** as well as a generous funding grant from **The Trust Charitable Foundation**. With close to 200 plus children being the recipient of these playing shirts and the plethora of errors that could arise from sizing issues the process worked remarkably smoothly with only a few players getting playing shirts that were ill fitting as the sizing was not identified correctly when ordered.













Hawkes Bay Cricket Camps

Once again the club sent teams to the annual Hawkes Bay Cricket Camps which for many years have been a highlight for players and parents alike, This past season we sent teams in the Year 5, 6, 7 and 8 grades with an additional Year 8 team travelling to the Hawkes Bay on Labour Weekend 2022 to participate in an early preseason tournament just for Year 8 teams.

Stewart Cater Cup

The annual Stu Cater Cup tournament was held over two weekends at the back end of the season at Ian Galloway Park and the victors on this occasion were a team from the Onslow club. Many thanks to Michael Joseph and Matt Conway for coaching and managing the team together and also to Sunil Surujpal for coordinating the organising of the event.

The club is extremely grateful to the people who put their hands up to administer cricket for junior players in our club-Darren Lynch, Brett Horne, Andy Francis, Ali Harty, Bex Simpson, Sunil Surujpal(until Xmas 2022), Gareth Morgan, Michael McCully, and Connor Lusty. We have recently been joined by Hiros Bhaskaran, Ananth Kumar, Supriya Bhatia and Lakjeewani Wimalasiri. Thanks

also to Treasurer Wendy Welsh for her efforts particularly at the pointy end of the season regarding registration.s

IN SUMMARY

That summarises another full season for all aspects of cricket in our community and the combined efforts of people to put cricket on for our community of players. We will never be able to satisfy all of the people all of the time but mark my words we try very hard to do so!

Rick Mudgway Chairman Johnsonville Cricket Club

Past Players Day

Honours Awards @ Waiora

11 February 2023











Nigel Blair Raki Scott M Rick



JCC Honours Awards 11 February 2023





Life Member Badges

Alan Isaac Nigel Blair George Verry Earle Cooper Luke Woodcock Cheryl Styles Rick Mudgway Dallas Mildenhall

300+ Games Presentation

Scott Mudgway

100+ plus Senior/Premier Games Recipients

	Started	Finished I	No.of Games
Robert Turner	1976	1990	136
Ross Verry	1982	1996	154
Alan Isaac	1976	1987	127
Marc Warner	1980	1998	138
Rakitha Weerasundara	2012	2022	162
Luke Woodcock	1999	2020	157
Zac Ringrose	2015		108
Gareth Severin	2016		102
Phil Barton	1985	2001	102
Nigel Blair	1977	2006	234
Scott Edgecombe	2011		114
David Hudson	2009		145
Chris Leach	2007	2020	156
Don Newton	1978	1990	153
Gareth Powell	2002	2013	152
Mark Pulley	2001	2014	165
Hareen Silva	2010	2021	153
Matthew Judge	1999	2010	100

Team Reports

Premier Men

We kicked the season off with the T20 competition, where the results didn't go our way and we were unfortunately knocked out after the round robin stage.

Then came the one-day competition where the weather decided it would disrupt a large proportion of the season. The Team only managed to play 5 out of the 10 scheduled one day games.

The highlights of the competition largely came from one man, Gareth Severin. Gareth hit a mammoth 163 (139) in the team's first win of the season versus Upper Hutt, and he then followed up this master class with scores of 65 versus eventual competition winners Taita and 97* again against Upper Hutt. The team struggled to gain any momentum with the stop start nature of the competition, unfortunately only coming away with 2 wins but still managing to finish 3rd overall.



Gareth Severin leading the team off Barton Oval against Upper Hutt

The Pearce Cup defence was made difficult following the performances in the one day competition, but we got off to the best possible start with another big innings and 136 run win over Upper Hutt, where Gareth Severin continued to haunt Upper Hutt with another 106 to his name. Max Petrie lead the bowling attack with 4 wickets in the first innings and followed that up to lead the team to victory with a hugely impressive 5 for 17 off 10 in the second innings.

We then had a couple of close fought matches with Karori and Taita where we unfortunately came off on the wrong side. We then managed to finish the season on a high against Easts with Johnsonville stalwart, Rakitha Weerasundara leading the team to a competitive first innings score but unfortunately falling agonisingly short of a century (95). Then the Johnsonville new comer Sean Wakelin took the team to a first innings lead with 5 wickets. In what is likely Raki's last innings for Johnsonville he took the team to a chance of an outright win as he scored a faultless 103*. The team pushed Easts right to the end but fell 1 wicket short of an outright win.

Overall it was a pretty disappointing season for the team, after winning the Pearce Cup the prior two seasons and with all the weather disruptions. Special mentions need to be made to Gareth Severin on a phenomenal season, which saw him earn a richly deserved Wellington Firebirds call-up which included a near match saving 196. Also to Rakitha Weerasundara who played his last season as he is heading to Australia to live. Raki has been with the club for 11 years (not including his junior years with the club). He has played over 170 matches, lead the club to two Pearce Cups wins, which included a mammoth 199* in the final, and to finish up with an unbeaten century seems to be the most fitting way to send off a club legend.

Zac Ringrose Premier Men Co Captain

Premier Women

The 2022/23 season was a change for the premier women as we formed a combined team with Wellington Collegians. With both teams, we managed to field a strong team which led us to a final for the one-day Joy Lamason competition and a strong third in the T20 Maureen Peters competition.

Dhriti Girish, Annissa Greenlees, Abby Holdaway, Simone Lenora and Olivia McRae were our 5 players who regularly played in the combined 11. Our U19 representative Dhriti Girish was overall one of our stronger players picking up all 3 of the teams' awards at prize-giving, due to her impressive performances throughout the season including a 60* against Hutt Districts in the Maureen Peters T20 competition. We also had some appearances from our domestic players Jess McFadyen, Maneka Singh and Paige Loggenberg as well as White Fern Leigh Kasperek. We started the season off strongly with wins against North City & Upper Hutt with Jess Mcfadyen having an outstanding performance against Upper Hutt scoring a brilliant 94* off 51 balls including 9 4's and 7 6's leading us to a 10-wicket victory. As the One day competition progressed we unfortunately had half of our rounds rained out. Though this was interrupting our season we still managed to make our way to the final against Petone, where we earned a strong second place even though the game did not go our way.

In January we played our first match of the Maureen Peters T20 competition where we once again started off strong with a win 2-wicket win against North City. We continued to succeed with another win against Upper Hutt, winning by 7 wickets and a draw against Hutt Districts. Although we started the T20 competition well, we unfortunately just missed out on making the final by one point. Despite not winning either trophy our strong combined team were happy with our 2nd and 3rd place efforts in both competitions, with hopes we can progress further in the 23/24 season.

Annissa Greenlees
Captain Premier Women

Premier Reserves

Overall the weather was the winner in the Senior Reserve grade.

We opened our campaign at Sladden Park on a fine day with a great 8 wicket win over Petone Reserves. This weather was pretty much as good as it got prior to Christmas with 5 of our 8 games abandoned due to weather.

We had two really good performances against Hutt Districts and Upper Hutt, winning in the games when it went down to the wire.

We finished up at Christmas in 4th place overall, with 3 sides tied on points separated by run rate with only a few points separating the top 5 sides.

In the New Year again weather had a significant impact on the One Day competition. Completing the One Day round we were well placed to push for the title in the Timed Rounds.

In the timed rounds we were just not quite there in a number of games and were unable to make the final push when it counted.

Batting was our Achilles heel all season and we were probably 1-2 partnerships off the pace the whole season. We had some outstanding performances with Sean Wakelin scoring 103 and Janakan 80. Uday also batted consistently over the season patiently making good starts to allow others to bat around him. However in a number of games we were that 15-20 runs away from where we needed to be to allow our bowlers the freedom to really apply pressure.

Callan led the way with the pace attack, picking up the most wickets overall including a 5 wicket bag. Fletcher Rowley also picked up a 5 wicket bag against Easts. Most encouraging was watching young Sandeep Rana develop over the season and picking up some crucial wickets in some key games, especially 2 concurrent wickets against Petone to win us the game by 2 runs.

Fielding overall reflected the rustiness of a season that never really got going and we lacked a bit of a rhythm overall to put in consistent slick performances. We had some players for part of the season making a difference with Andrew Moir stepping up in a few games too.

Apart from playing Vic Uni, we played all teams in the grade and won against all except Wellington Collegians in at least one game highlighting what could have been in a number of the other games against the same opposition.

Overall the season was an even mark with lots of potential – noting the majority of the side were in their mid-20's or younger, the future is looking good if we can retain players and build their skills and confidence. We played 13 games out of 21, with 4 wins, 8 losses and a winning draw. This left us in 6th Place overall.

Niki Zivkovic Captain

3rd XI

Starting the season with a full team, it was a confident start for the boys. But soon that became a dream with a few players injured, moving to Australia and moving up to the higher grade.

Playing our first game short of 2 players was a let-down but with the help of school boys filling in we had a full XI. Despite the fantastic knock of 80* from Brett Edgecombe we lost the game which was a disappointing start for the team. The following game was abandoned due to rain so we had to play the Eastern Suburbs 3rds the week after who are a tough team in our division to beat. And again, not able to have the full XI we had to go to Luke Woodcock to fill in who ended up scoring 103* and gave us a much-needed win and a boost to move further into the season.



Luke Woodcock appearing for the 3rd X1

Soon the weather started to play a major part of the season with 7 out of 21 weekends washed out due to rain. With challenges to fill the team with 11 players every weekend, the rain did help save us a few games. End of the one-day games we managed to stay 5th in the division.

Hoping for better weather we started off the two-day games with more games being abandoned due to rain. A few notable wins which included the game against Wellington Collegians XI with Alex Chafe scoring a flamboyant 85 and picking up 2 wickets. We finished the season with a memorable win against the Sikh XI, brilliant performances from Dominic McAlister (50) and Jeremy Welsh (81) scoring the much-needed runs

Notable performance for the season:

Yatesh – 164 runs bagged the best Batsman

Arun Boja and Callistus Don Silva – 14 wickets each bagged the best bowlers.

MVP – Alex Chafe, for his overall performance for the thirds that helped the team to finish 5th in the Overall Standing.



Finishing off the season in style with a big win against the Sikh XI

Arun Boja Captain

Northern XI

It was a good season probably better than the last season as less Covid restrictions and a feel of better harmony and spirit. Every team we have played with has been amazing.

A great change - Alex Moore Club house. It is great to see the club in action there. I liked the award ceremony and how it was conducted having the senior member/ team manager to present the award to their players. I personally liked the turn out.



Also, we would like to thank the whole cricket association and the Johnsonville Cricket Club management for their continued support and the regular updates and management.

We look forward to the next season this year.

Rohit Kumar Captain

Panthers

The 2022/23 season was a tough season for the Panthers. This season we welcomed a couple of new players due to the departure of a few existing players. We had many different players join over the season to fill the unavailability of existing players for some matches.

We started off well with one-day matches. We were able to win a few matches at the start of the season. However, due to the unavailability of most of the existing players, we lost a couple of matches continuously due to unavailability of few existing players. Overall, we enjoyed the one-day matches despite the few games being washed out due to bad weather conditions.

Two days of matches for the season did not go well as we played due to the unavailability of key existing players, various other commitments, and fitness issues. Despite not having existing key players we managed to find some players to fill the team and played all scheduled matches. In some matches, we played with a few team members. Despite the result, win or lose, we all enjoyed the game and identified our weaknesses.

We ended the season with a 10 overs friendly match against the Upper Hutt team and we were able to win that match.

Overall, it was a very tough season for the Panthers mainly in two-day competitions, but we are hopeful for a successful run in the next season.



Romesh Rodrigo Captain

Blue Caps

The 2023 cricket season for our team has been a remarkable period of camaraderie, enjoyment, and engagement. This end-of-season report aims to provide an overview of our team's activities, key highlights, and areas of improvement. We would like to the thank JCC and Cricket Wellington for their support and management through the season.



Key Highlights

While our team emphasizes the joy of playing cricket, the tournament matches held every weekend were filled with memorable achievements and highlights:

- Regular practice sessions were held to enhance our cricketing abilities, teamwork, and overall enjoyment of the game. These sessions focused on skill development and improvement.
- Our team participated in numerous friendly matches, providing opportunities for members to showcase their skills, learn from each other, and enjoy the sport in a relaxed setting. These matches were marked by friendly rivalries, laughter, and moments of cricketing brilliance.
- The dedication and enthusiasm shown by our players reflected their love for the game and their desire to contribute to the success of the team (finishing in top 5 in our first season as a team). We always had more than 11 players ready to play for every game.
- The players showcased their skills, teamwork, and determination, resulting in exciting matches, close finishes, and several memorable victories. Our team members upheld the values of sportsmanship, fair play, and respect for opponents throughout the tournament. They played the game in the right spirit, fostering a positive environment that was appreciated by other teams.
- Engaging in spirited matches together, sharing victories and defeats, and celebrating each other's achievements fostered a sense of unity and friendship within the team.
- In addition to cricket, we arranged social gatherings and team events, such as after match drinks and dinners, and end-of-season parties. These occasions allowed members to bond, connect, and create lasting friendships beyond the cricket field.



Areas of Improvement:

While we celebrate our achievements, it is crucial to identify areas where we can improve and grow as a team. The following areas require attention and concerted efforts in the upcoming seasons:

- Fitness and Conditioning: Enhancing the overall fitness levels of our players will contribute to improved performance, endurance, and injury prevention. The implementation of a structured fitness regimen will be a priority in the offseason.
- Consistency in Performance: Striving for consistency in our performances will be a key objective going forward. Analysing match data, identifying patterns, and refining our strategies will aid in minimizing fluctuations in form and ensuring a more stable performance throughout the season.
- Last but not least we plan to party even harder this time 😝

By Krishna Vatsavai Captain



Premier Girls Hardball

The club was delighted to field three Girls hardball teams aged between school years 7-11 for the 2022/23 season. All three teams had a good mix of returning players and new girls to the club or the game. The club kitted all three teams with the newly designed playing trousers, warm vests and blue batting pads. The teams certainly looked the part. Connor Lusty was engaged to coach all three teams providing a weekly team training. Specialist wicket keeping, throwing and batting sessions were incorporated over the season.

The season comprised three different formats – Pairs, T20 and T30's. All three teams were very competitive in all game formats, and it was great to see the girls continuing to grow throughout the season.

A combined girls hardball team attended the Hawkes Bay tournament for the second year running in January. Once again, the girls had a lot of fun and it was great for their development. Thanks to Matt Conway for managing the team during the tournament.

Cara McCully, Hannah Leckie and Lily Tankersley participated in Cricket Wellington's 2022 Young Leaders programme. JCC was once again well represented in Cricket Wellingtons female age level pathway programmes.



JCC Girls Hardball - Ruru

Like the other hardball teams, the Ruru team had a great mix of players, most returning players but some new to the club or with limited hardball experience. The first half of the season was heavily impacted by cancelations due to weather which really disrupted momentum. Despite that the team developed into a very capable team of all-rounders, all of whom displayed their skills throughout the season.

The girls game day knowledge and skill sets improved substantially over the season. They were a strong fielding team supporting each other and displaying great teamwork. This was franked by the high number of catches the team took over the season and tidy keeping from our 2 fine wicketkeepers. Batting really started to develop as the season went on with plenty of great knocks.

The first few rounds of pairs was effectively washed out. The team was unbeaten in the T20 games they played. The girls were very competitive in the T30 format finishing 5th overall.

The team had a great bunch of parents who supported the team enthusiastically and helped out on game day.

The recipients of the Ruru team awards based on PlayHQ stats were:

Batting MVP - Cara McCully

Bowling MVP - Cara McCully

Team MVP - Cara McCully

Michael McCully Coach



JCC Girls Hardball - Kereru

The Kereru team also had a great mix of players and started the season strongly finishing 3rd at the conclusion of the T20 rounds which was a fantastic result. The subsequent loss of the game day manager and a couple of players at the Xmas break, followed by injuries and further absences, wasn't ideal. This left the team a little short for the second half of the season. With playing as much cricket as possible in mind the team carried on shuffling the wider squad to bolster the team and brought in additional players when required.

This enthusiastic group of girls did a great job preserving and it was great to see them involved in a number of thrilling wins. The Kereru players enjoyed their cricket, and demonstrated some great cricketing skills along the way and showed great promise.

Thanks to Ganesh, Muhammad and Suhel for managing the team on game day and to the parents for all their assistance and support.

The recipients of the Kereru team awards based on PlayHQ stats were:

Batting MVP - Hannah Leckie

Bowling MVP - Aesha Sukhu

Team MVP - Hannah Leckie and Aesha Sukhu

Michael McCully Girls Hardball coordinator



JCC Girls Hardball – Tuis

The Tuis cricket team did well this season. They played many matches and faced different challenges. Overall, the team showed a lot of determination and enthusiasm, showing how much they love the game.

In the season the team played

- 6 T20 matches. They won 3 matches and lost 3 matches, which means they had a 50% winloss ratio.
- 5 ODI matches. They won 4 matches and lost 1 match. This was a great comeback for the team after having mixed results in the T20 matches

Overall, in the Wellington region, the Tuis came 2nd in the girls' hardball grade.

Every Tui player showed great improvement in their skills and team spirit. We had several Tuis who represented the Wellington region in age group selection:

- Senali Vasanthathilake U13
- Grace Maciver U13
- Emma McKenzie U13
- Anvi Verma U13, U15



Anvi Verma had an outstanding season, winning the Most Valuable Player (MVP) award in the Johnsonville girl hardball grade. She also took the highest number of wickets in the grade (12 wickets, with an economy rate of 3.9) and scored the most runs (410 runs) with an average of 410 and a strike rate of over 140.

Even though the team did well, there are areas where they can improve. These include:

- Working on their batting and bowling techniques, like finding the right gaps and making good calls.
- Improving their fielding skills.
- Developing better strategies and game plans.
- Building their fitness and endurance

The team showed great teamwork and spirit throughout the season. Co-captains Lily Tankersley and Anvi Verma provided good support and took on their on-field responsibilities well. Coach Connor Lusty played an important role in motivating the players and creating a positive environment for their growth and development. We would also like to thank Michael McCully for taking care of the wider squad. Thank you both for your hard work.

Well played, Tuis! It was a lot of fun playing with all of you. Take care, and hopefully, we'll see each other on the field soon.

Hemant Verma Coach

Prize Winners 2022 – 2023 Season

Senior Awards

	NAME	WINNER
JCC Club Cricketer of the Year	John Butt Memorial Trophy	Gareth Severin
JCC Most Dedicated Club Member	Alan Brider Trophy	Wendy Welsh
Most Outstanding Player Under 20 years of age	Luke Woodcock Trophy	Dhriti Girish
Premier Men's Player of the Year/MVP	Nigel Blair Trophy	Gareth Severin
Premier Women's Player of the Year/MVP	Molly Bleakly Trophy	Dhriti Girish
Premier Reserve Player of the Year/MVP	Dennis Duggan Trophy	Callan Holgate
One/Two Day Lower Grade Player of the Year/MVP	Julian Allen Trophy	Sahan Amarakoon
Girls Hardball Player of the Year/MVP	Unnamed	Anvi Verma
Premier Men's Bowler of the Year	Robert Turner Trophy	Maximus Petrie
Premier Men's Batter of the Year	Bryan Malin Trophy	Gareth Severin
Premier Women's Bowler of the Year	Michelle McKay Trophy	Dhriti Girish
Premier Women's Batter of the Year	Megan Wakefield Trophy	Dhriti Girish
Premier Reserve Bowler of the Year	John Mitchell Trophy	Callan Holgate
Premier Reserve Batter of the Year	Locke Family Trophy	Janakan Karunaharan
One/Two Day Lower Grade Bowler of the Year	Ian Quinlan Trophy	Sahan Amarakoon
One/Two Day Lower Grade Batter of the Year	George Halliday Trophy	Yatesh Maisuria
Girls Hardball Bowler of the Year	Unnamed	Anvi Verma
Girls Hardball Batter of the Year	Unnamed	Anvi Verma

3 rd X1 Player of the Year/MVP	Alex Chafe
3 rd X1 Bowler of the Year	Arun Boja
	Callistus Don Silva
3 rd X1 Batter of the Year	Yatesh Maisuria
Panthers Player of the Year	Sahan Amarakoon
Panthers Bowler of the Year	Sahan Amarakoon
Panthers Batter of the Year	Sahan Amarakoon
Girls Hardball Player of the	Anvi Verma
Year/MVP-Tui Team	

Girls Hardball Bowler of the Year-Tui	Anvi Verma
Team	
Girls Hardball Batter of the Year-Tui	Anvi Verma
Team	
Girls Hardball Player of the	Cara McCully
Year/MVP-Ruru Team	
Girls Hardball Bowler of the Year-	Cara McCully
Ruru Team	
Girls Hardball Batter of the Year-	Cara McCully
Ruru Team	
Girls Hardball Player of the	Aesha Sukhu/Hannah Leckie
Year/MVP-Kereru Team	
Girls Hardball Bowler of the Year-	Aesha Sukhu
Kereru Team	
Girls Hardball Batter of the Year-	Hannah Leckie
Kereru Team	
Northern X1 Player of the Year MVP	Abhinav Mittal
Northern X1 Batter of the Year	Deepak Kumar
Northern XI Batter of the Tear	Весрик кити
Northern X1 Bowler of the Year	Ajay Bodliya
Blue Caps Player of the Year MVP	Suresh Kurupuri
Blue Caps Batter of the Year	Rajesh Gangalam
blue caps butter of the real	najesh dangalam
Blue Caps Bowler of the Year	Kranthi Amaravadi

Junior Awards

Team	All-rounder	Team Player
Y2 Blair Wright Group		Monty Watson-Black
		Jack Gailitis
Y2 Lesvos Shoe & Bag Repairs		Reyaan Sengupta
		Sidhaarth R Sitaram
Y2 Volts		Ransh Bhatia
		Flynn Potaka
Y3 Simmer Café		Jesse Horne
		Isaac Stainer
Y3 Straight Flush Plumbing		Smaran Lanka
		Ramkrishnath Ramana
Y3 Wellington Electrical Ltd		Zeph Samarasekera
		Lincoln Corney
Y4 Ashton D'Silva Real Estate		Blade Harris
		Leo McMurtrie
Y4 Blaze		Jade Tulikifanga
		Josie Harris
Y4 Halliday Resource		Muhammad Arham Abbas
Management		Liam Paul Coutts
Y4 Wasabi Air		Veer Lalwani
		Cameron Vosges
Y5 4CET Plumbing & Gas	Cooper Whitelaw	Sanneev Paul
Y5 Cuttriss Consultants Ltd	Enrico Vaz	Jacob Fraser
Y5 The Innkeeper Johnsonville	Noah Vageree	
	Flynn Harty	
Y5 Woodridge Homes Ltd	Sharvil Dahivale	Romit Upadhyay
Y6 New World Churton Park	Mitchell Collier	Advaith Konteram Kadavath
		Nechinathil
Y6 Johnsonville Motor Doctors	Micah Bunting	Riyaan Patel
Y6 Alphabuild NZ		Alex Anderson
		Ryan Morgan
Y7 Life Photography	Muhammad Zayan Abbasi	
	Maddox Falconer	
Y7 New World Newlands	Keiran Jacobsen Connor	
	Jay Henry	
Y7 Straight Flush Plumbing	Vinuka Aluthge	Gerhard van Staden
Y5-8 Girls Softball Blues		Grace Fouhy
		Nandi Patel
Y5-8 Girls Softball Singhers		Neve Nicholls
		Vaibhawi Tiwari

Graduate Medals

Panshul Anand Saad Azhar Tane Brunning Archibald **Button** Orion D'Silva Campbell Eggleton **Tomas** Elliott Quinn Fenwick Harris Jack Nathaniel Hikuroa-Reddie Caleb Howard-Brumby Yuvin Madnani Jayden McIntosh Joshua Morgan

Tyler Naughton Nicholls Luca Jed O'Donnell Aiden **Pandit** Varun Pangam Prasad Aumang Jack Saunders Dylan Saywell Abdulbaasit Shaikh Isaac Southerton Thomas Surujpal Anvi Verma Wynand Wolfaardt

The Charlie Temel Memorial Trophy which acknowledges the player with the most passion and commitment for the game, was awarded jointly to Vinuka Aluthge & Jonty Joseph

Club Sponsor and Supporters



















4CET Plumbing & Gas

Alpha Build NZ Ltd

Ashton D'Silva

Blair Wright Group Ltd

Café Simmer

Cuttriss Consultants Limited

Halliday Resource Management Ltd

Johnsonville Motor Doctors

Lesvos Shoe & Bag Repairs

Life Photography

New World – Churton Park

New World - Newlands

Straight Flush Plumbing

Wasabi Air

Wellington Electrical Services Ltd

Woodridge Homes

Audited Accounts for 2022-2023 Season

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB INCORPORATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2023

CONTENTS	PAGES
Audit Report	1
Statement of Financial Performance	2
Statement of Financial Position	3
Notes to the Financial Statements	4

TO THE READERS OF THE JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB INCORPORATED ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2023

I have audited the attached financial statements of the Johnsonville Cricket Club Incorporated (the Club) on pages 1 to 3, that comprise the statement of financial performance, statement of financial position and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies. The financial statements provide information about the past financial performance of the Club and its financial position as at 30 April 2023.

Responsibilities of the Executive

The Executive is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that present fairly the financial position of the Club as at 30 April 2023 and of the results of operations for the year ended 30 April 2023, and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.

Auditor's Responsibilities

The Constitution of the Club requires the Auditor to audit the financial statements presented by the Executive. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the information I audited, as a whole, is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's opinion.

Basis of Opinion

I carried out the audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).

I have fulfilled my responsibilities in accordance with the Standards.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Independence

I am independent of the Club in accordance with the independence requirements of the Standards which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical Standards.

Other than in my capacity as auditor I have no relationship with or interests in the Club.

Unqualified Opinion

I have obtained all the information and explanations I have required.

In my opinion, the financial statements of the Club present fairly, in all material respects the financial position as at 30 April 2023, and the results of its operations for the year ended 30 April 2023, and comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.

My audit was completed on 14 June 2023, and my unqualified opinion is expressed as at that date.

Jagdish Kalyan BCA, CA

Chartered Accountant

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE		
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2023		
	2023	2022
	Total	Total
	\$	\$
Income		
Subscriptions	36,179	32,20
Sponsorship	16,900	12,87
Grants	84,684	54,614
Interest	983	37
Hawkes Bay Cricket Camp	11,997	9,469
Coaching Support Payments	0	3,500
Miscellaneous Income	4,392	720
Total Income	155,135	113,410
Less Expenditure		
Administration		
Accounting	581	378
Audit Fee	300	300
Website	0	27
Printing & Stationery	440	192
Alex Moore Park Development Capitation Fees	2,260	2,204
Repairs & Maintenance	247	1,408
Total Administration	3,828	4,757
Playing		
Coaching	17,400	27,430
Cricket Wellington Fees	12,410	10,920
Farnboro Centre Rental	3,000	3,000
Player Costs	0	172
Gear	50,646	32,823
Junior Camps / Tournaments	11,796	8,770
Pre Season Training	417	2,483
Trophies	2,059	3,53
Total Playing	97,728	89,13
Other		
Advertising	353	360
Depreciation	2,240	2,580
General	1,665	1,710
nsurance	1,436	1,27
Photos	3,710	3,83
Functions	3,717	2,19
WCC Fees		
Total Other	13,121	11,950
Total Expenditure	114,677	105,84
Net Profit (Loss) from Operations	40,458	7,572

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION				
AS AT 30 APRIL 2023				
	2023		2022	
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Current Assets				
Bank	101,418		73,525	
Term Deposit John Butt Fund	10,000		-	
GST Refund	618		404	
Total Current Assets		112,036		73,929
Fixed Assets				
Net Development	36,148		36,148	
Less Accumulated Depreciation	(34,749)	1,399	(34,399)	1,749
Astro Turf Nets	18,600		18,600	
Less Accumuated Depreciation	(11,743)	6,857	(10,029)	8,571
Bowdry machine	2,106		-	
,	(175)	1,931	-	-
Total Fixed Assets		10,187		10,320
Current Liabilities				
Sundry Accruals		57		741
Income in Advance		-		1,800
Total Current Liabilities		57		2,541
Net Assets		122,166		81,708
Represented by Accumulated Funds:				
John Butt Reserve Fund		10,000		10,000
General Funds Opening Balance		71,708		64,136
Add net profit (loss)		40,458		7,572
Closing Accumulated Funds		122,166		81,708

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB INCORPORATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2023 1 REPORTING ENTITY These financial statements have been prepared for JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB INCORPORATED which is an incorporated society registered under the Incorporated Societies Act 1908. 2 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES Measurement base The accounting principles recognised as appropriate for the measurement and reporting of earnings and financial position of the Club on a historical cost basis are followed by the Club. Accrual accounting is used to recognise expenses and revenues when they occur. Specific accounting policies The following specific accounting policies which materially effect the measurement of the financial performance and financial position have been applied. **Fixed Assets** Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation to date. Depreciation Depreciation has been calculated with reference to the estimated useful life of each asset. Goods and services tax The Club is registered for GST, the financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis. GST due or recoverable at balance date is included in either current liabilities or current assets.

The entity qualifies for differential reporting as it is not publicly accountable and it meets the size criteria.

The Club has taken full advantage of all available differential reporting exemptions.

Differential reporting

Team Statistics and Club Records

Statistics and records compiled by our scorer Cheryl Styles.

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB SENIOR MENS' RECORDS - 2022-23 – BATTING

Player		Matches	Inns.	Not Out	Runs	H.S.	Avge	100's	50's	6's	4's
Severin	G R	11	12	2	703	163 ^{PB}	70.3	3	3	16	72
Weerasundara	RK	12	14	2	533	103*	44.4	1	4	10	52
Vishvaka	KLD	10	12	1	406	75*	36.9	-	4	6	40
Kelly	NF	1	1	-	28	28	28.0	-	-	1	3
Mudgway	S A	12	13	-	316	66	24.3	-	2	19	27
Ringrose	z M	10	7	161	52	52 ^{PB}	17.8	-	1	2	13
Edgecombe	R D	6	6	-	99	62	16.5	-	-	1	10
^D Wakelin	S	10	10	2	129	37	16.1	-	-	5	13
^D Karunaharan	J	4	4	-	61	28	15.2	-	-	-	7
Hilder	ВJ	10	8	3	73	28	14.6	-	-	3	4
McEwan	МВ	6	7	1	86	26	14.3	-	-	6	5
Kyne	J	3	3	-	42	17	14.0	-	-	-	6
Hudson	DJ	6	3	1	25	25*	12.5	-	-	2	1
Nel	М	12	13	1	136	48 ^{PB}	12.3	-	-	-	10
^D Jeffreys	L	1	1	-	12	12	12.0	-	-	1	ı
Petrie	M G H	13	10	2	84	29 ^{PB}	10.5	-	ı	ı	7
Edgecombe	S G	5	5	1	62	40	10.0	-	-	ı	6
^D Holgate	СМ	1	1	-	10	10	10.0	-	-	1	ı
^D McBride	В	4	4	-	24	20	6.0	-	-	1	2
Lusty	CL	8	7	5	4	4*	2.0	-	-	-	-
Moir	Α	1	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	-
Smith	NG	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

Key: PB Personal Best for JCC; * Not Out; D Debut Season

Milestones for Men's Premier Team

S A Mudgway achieved 300 matches

S A Mudgway achieved 7,000 runs

R K Weerasundara achieved 5,000 runs

G R Severin achieved 3,000 runs

K L D Vishvaka achieved 2,000 runs



Scott receiving an award from Alan Isaac for playing 300 games for JCC

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB SENIOR MEN'S RECORDS 2022-23 — CENTURIES

Batsman			50				100				Innings			
		Balls	Balls Mins 4's 6's			Balls	Mins	4's	6's	Runs	Balls	Mins	4's	6's
Weerasundara	RK	30	34	10	1	69	72	4	14	103*	71	74	4	14
Severin	G R	53	71	6	-	133	168	11	-	103*	133	173	11	-
Severin	G R	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	163	139	-	20	2
Severin	G R	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	106	137	-	16	2

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB SENIOR MEN'S RECORDS 2022-23 – HALF CENTURIES

Batsman			50				lnı	nings		
		Balls	Mins	4's	6's	Runs	Balls	Mins	4's	6's
Mudgway	SA	28	41	4	4	72	47	60	4	6
Severin	G R	38	51	7	2	97*	80	106	12	3
Weerasundara	RK	50	58	3	3	52	56	65	3	3
Edgecombe	R D	55	57	5	2	62	62	76	5	3
Vishvaka	KLD	67	74	6	-	64	82	98	7	-
Vishvaka	KLD	69	103	3	1	75*	100	14	5	
Mudgway	SA	69	138	2	4	66	77	153	2	6
Vishvaka	KLD	74	100	6	-	52	75	101	6	-
Weerasundara	RK	77	80	4	-	54	85	90	4	-
Weerasundara	RK	96	129	5	1	95	167	197	8	3
Weerasundara	RK	98	129	5	1	95	167	197	8	3
Vishvaka	KLD	-	-	-	-	65	41	-	7	1
Severin	G R	-	-	-	-	68	45	-	7	2
Ringrose	Z M	-	-	-	-	52	51	-	4	-
Severin	G R	-	-	-	-	65	80	-	7	-

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB SENIOR MENS' RECORDS 2022-23 - BOWLING

				_		_		5	10
Bowler		Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets	Average	Best	Wickets	Wickets
									in
							Analysis	in Inn's	Match
Wakelin	S	65	9	286	20	14.3	5/28	1	-
Weerasundara	RK	52.2	5	260	17	15.2	5/30	1	-
Hilder	ВJ	91.3	23	324	19	17.0	4/35	-	
	MG								
Petrie	Н	127	17	543	27	20.1	5/17 ^{PB}	1	-
Ringrose	ZΜ	140.3	22	489	24	20.3	3/20	-	-
Lusty	CL	48	9	192	8	24.0	5/44 ^{PB}	1	-
Hudson	DJ	27	6	128	5	25.6	2/23	-	-
Edgecombe	SG	22.1	2	127	4	31.7	2/28	-	-
McBride	В	17	1	134	2	67.0	1/48	-	1
Edgecombe	R D	21	1	128	0	-	1	-	1
Holgate	CL	3	0	25	0	-	-	-	-
Kelly	ΝF	2	0	23	0	-	1	-	1
McEwan	МВ	4	0	12	0	-	ı	-	1
Nel	М	1	0	1	0	-	-	-	-
Severin	G R	2	0	17	0	-	-	-	-
Smith	NG	10	4	18	0	-	-	-	-

Key: **PB** Personal Best for JCC men's senior team

Milestone:

Z M Ringrose achieved 250 wickets for the men's senior team.

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB SENIOR MENS' RECORDS 2022-23 – FIELDING

Player		Catches	Stumpings
Severin	G R	8	-
Mudgway	SG	11	5
Vishvaka	KLD	6	-
Hilder	BJ	3	-
Ringrose	Z M	5	-
Hudson	Dl	1	-
Karunaharan	J	7	-
Petrie	MGH	7	
Weerasundara	RK	12	-
Wakelin	S	5	-
Edgecombe	S G	1	-
Edgecombe	R D	3	-
Kyne	J	2	-
McEwan	МВ	8	-
Jeffreys	L	1	-
Holgate	C M	1	-
Kelly	NF	1	-
McBride	В	3	-
McEwan	МВ	8	-
Moir	Α	1	-
Nel	М	3	-
Total		97	5

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB

SEASON'S PERFORMANCE

		Drawn/No		
Matches	Played	Result	Lost	Won
T 20*	3	1	3	-
One Day (50				
Overs)	6	-	2	4
Two Days	4	3	-	1
Totals	13	3	5	5

TEAM AGGREGATES

	Runs off Bat		Ex	tras			Total Runs	Wickets	Runs/Wickets
		Byes	Leg Byes	No Balls	Wides	Penalty			
For	2,988	23	45	27	72	-	3,155	119	26.5
Against	2,697	44	46	27	57	-	2,871	134	21.4

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB SENIOR MENS' RECORDS 2022-23 - PARTNERSHIPS

Wicket	Runs	Batsman	Batsman	Balls	Mins.	Versus & Venue	Date	Inns
1	112	K L D Vishvaka (73)	S A Mudgway (65*)	86	52	Karori @ Alex Moore Park	12.11.2022	Only
2	173*	K L D Vishvaka (75)	G R Severin (97*)	160	106	Upper Hutt @ Alex Moore Park	11.2.2023	Only
3	140	S A Mudgway (66)	R K Weerasundara (103*)	118	74	Eastern Sub's @ Alex Moore Park	25.3.2023	Second
4	49	R D Edgecombe (15)	R K Weerasundara (51*)	113	73	Karori @ Alex Moore	12.11.2022	Only
5	47*	R K Weerasundara (19*)	M Nel (18*)	70	40	Taita @ Alex Moore Park	44.3.2023	Second
6	25	M Nel (26)	S G Edgecombe (5*)	-	-	Taita @ Fraser A	22.10.2022	Only
7	50	Z M Ringrose (28)	R D Edgecombe (62*)	40	26	Taita @ Alex Moore Park	26.11.2022	Only
8	95	R K Weerasundara (95)	M G H Petrie (28*)	201	98	Eastern Sub's @ Alex Moore Park	18.3.2023	First
9	21	J Karunaharan (20)	N J Hilder (13*)	45	25	Karori @ Karori Park	4.2.2023	First
10	23*	D J Hudson (25*)	C L Lusty (4*)	-	-	Open Men 1st XI @ Alex Moore	5.11.2022	Only

^{*} Denotes batsman not out and/or unbroken partnership

Note: the runs shown above for each not out batsman is his total at the time the wicket fell and not the runs he contributed to the partnership.

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB CLUB RECORDS - PARTNERSHIPS

P'ship	Runs	Batsmen	Balls	Mins	Versus	Venue	Date	Inns
1	173	S A Mudgway (101) & R K Weerasundara (65*)	151	109	North City	Alex Moore Park	8.12.2018	Only
2	256*	D Pollock (127*) & S Mather (128*)	307	176	Mana	Alex Moore Park	12.3.1994	Second
3	193	P Barton (111) & M Warner (80*)	214	148	Wellington Collegians	Anderson Park	28.3.1992	Only
4	139	G Powell (64) & M Judge (77*)	-	-	Eastern Suburbs	Alex Moore Park	15.1.2005	Only
5	157*	M Richdale (60*) & J Millmow (95*)	173	195	University	Alex Moore Park	8.1.1994	Only
6	139	H S Smith (70) & G R Severin (94)	-	-	Eastern Suburbs	Kilbirnie Park	8.2.2020	First
7	186	S Edgecombe (94) & R Weerasundara (93*)	216	130	Petone-Eastbourne	Petone Rec	20.2.2016	Second
8	125	S Mudgway (87) & S Outtrim (32*)	143	76	Karori	Alex Moore Park	30.1.2010	First
9	80	A Isaac (50*) & S Ramage (57)	-	-	MSP	-	1976-77	-
10	136	G Nicholl (93) & D Castle (62*)	133	75	Hutt Districts	Alex Moore Park	2011-12	First

^{*}Indicates an unbroken partnership and/or batsman not out

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB CLUB RECORDS BATTING, BOWLING & FIELDING

Batting

Highest Innings A uz-Zaman, 226* runs against Petone-Riverside at Alex Moore Park 17 Dec 2008

Most Runs S A Mudgway, 7,161

Most Centuries L J Woodcock, 12

Most Matches S A Mudgway 307

Bowling

Best Bowling in an innings A G Wharf, 20.5 overs, 3 maidens, 72 runs, 10 Wickets v Hutt Districts, 23 Nov 1996

Best Bowling in a match A G Wharf against Hutt Districts, 23 & 30 Nov 1996

	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets		
1st Innings	20.5	3	72	10		
2nd						
Innings	17	7	31	6		
Total	37.5	10	103	16		

N.B. Hatrick in both innings

Most wickets N A Blair, 374 to end of 1997/98 season

Fielding

Most Dismissals by a

Wicketkeeper

S A Mudgway, 495 (394 catches, 101 stumpings)

Most catches by a Fielder N A Blair & M L Warner, 95 each

Most Dismissals in a

Season

S A Mudgway, 39 (27 Catches, 12 Stumpings)

JOHNSONVILLE CRICKET CLUB

SENIOR MENS' CAREER RECORDS

Name		Cassans	Nataba	Inna	N.O.		H.S.		100's	50's	C/S+	Overs	Mdns	Buns	Wkts	Augo	В/В	5/Inns	10/Match
	R D	Seasons 2021-23	Mtchs 21	Inns 17	N.O.	Runs 212	62	Avge 13.2	100 \$	1	C/St 7	47.5	4	Runs 256	16	Avge 32	4/8	5/Inns	10/iviatch
Edgecombe	ΚD	2021-23	21	17		212	02	13.2	_	1	,	47.3	-	230	10	32	4/8		_
- 1		2011-18	119	88	22	906	94	13.7	-	2	24	724.3	155	2975	157	18.9	7/38	4	1
Edgecombe	SG																		
		2010-11)				400	4-					477.0	25	500	25	10.5	4 (0.5		
Hilder	BJ	2013-16)	31	25	6	189	47	9.9	-	-	11	177.2	35	689	35	19.6	4/35	-	-
		2022-23)				_	_	_				_	_	_	_				
Holgate	CM	2022-23	1	1	-	10	10	10	-	-	1	3	0	25	0	-	-	-	-
Hudson	DJ	2009-19	151	102	30	826	47	11.4	_	_	64	1272.3	217	7920	270	18.2	6/23	9	_
		2021-23									_						-, -		
Jeffreys	L	2022-23	1	1	-	12	12	12.0	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Karunaharan	J	2022-23	4	4	-	61	28	15.2	-	-	7	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Kelly	NF	2022-23	1	1	-	28	28	28.0	-	-	1	2	0	23	0	-	-	-	-
Kyne	J	2022-23	3	3	-	42	17	14.0	-	ı	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Lusty C	CL	2018-19	16	9	6	11	4*	3.6	-	-	3	98.3	17	266	19	14.0	5/44	1	
	CL	2021-23																1	-
McBride	ВJ	2022-23	4	4	-	24	20	6.0			3	17	1	134	2	67.0	1-42	-	-
McEwan	МВ	2021-23	10	11	3	135	58*	16.8	-	-	12	12	0	48	2	24.0	2/36	-	-
Moir	Α	2022-23	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	_	_	-	-
Mudgway	SA	2004-23	307	343	15	7161	119	21.8	5	33	394/101	4.4	0	44	1	44.0	1/2	-	-
Nel	М	2021-23	13	14	2	137	48	11.4	-	-	3	1	0	1	0	-	-	-	-
	MG		28	15	5	115	29	11.5			15	200	18	925	49	18.8	5/17		
Petrie	Н	2021-23	20	13	3	113	29	11.5	-	-	13	200	10	923	49	10.0	3/17	-	1
Ringrose	ZM	2015-23	118	76	34	521	52	15.3	-	1	45	904.1	223	4906	260	18.8	7/29	9	-
Severin	G R	2016-23	113	116	12	3312	163	31.8	7	12	88/10	8.5	0	90	1	90.0	1/28	-	-
Smith	NG	2021-23	3	2	2	147	102*	_	1		1	48	13	108	1	108.0	1/45	-	-
Vishvaka	KLD	2016-23	62	69	8	2168	131	35.5	2	15	32	2	0	10	0	-	-	-	-
Wakelin	S	2022-23	10	10	2	129	37	16.1			5	65	9	286	20	14.3	5/28	1	-
Weerasundara	RK	2012-23	174	190	24	5113	199*	30.8	6	21	89	558.2	57	2338	119	19.6	5/26	2	-